ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
January 16, 2002
8:10 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Con Bunde, Chair
Representative Joe G een
Representative Peggy W son
Representative Gary Stevens
Represent ati ve Reggi e Joul e
Representati ve G etchen Guess

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Brian Porter

COW TTEE CALENDAR

WORK SESSI ON - TEACHER SHORTAGE | SSUES
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

BETH NORDLUND, Speci al Assi stant

O fice of the Conm ssi oner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent
801 West 10th Street, Suite 200

Juneau, Al aska 99801-1894

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questi ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-1, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR CON BUNDE called the House Special Commttee on Education
neeting to order at 8:10 a.m He noted this neeting was a work
session and that he anticipated the discussion would be "free-
rangi ng" in order to identify legislation the commttee may w sh
to sponsor.

Number 0335

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -1- January 16, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS expressed his opinion that as a result of
the committee's interim neetings held in Kodiak, Kotzebue,
Wasilla, and Anchorage, nenbers had |earned a great deal. He
stated that the issue of nentoring was consistently nentioned by
W tnesses at these hearings. No statew de nentoring program
currently exists. He acknow edged that it wll be nore
difficult in the future to attract new teachers and to keep the
good teachers. He wondered if it was possible to draft
| egi sl ation to encourage districts to have a nentoring program

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS referenced a conversation W th
Representative Guess regarding the possibility that a portion of
a school district's admnistration budget could be dedicated to

teacher nmentoring prograns. [According to Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnment ( EED) per sonnel , school
districts nmust allocate 70 percent of state funds for
i nstruction; adm ni stration, facility, and ot her non-

instructional costs nust be budgeted from the remaining 30
percent.] He asked whether this would be an issue the conmttee
m ght like to tackle.

Nunber 0447

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she thought it wise to let the loca

school board have as nuch control of the school system [as
possi ble]. The Wangell School District has a nentoring program
for which it receives no extra funding. Mentors are set up with
new teachers as they arrive. She believed there nust be other
districts in the state with nentoring prograns. She noted that
she thought sonme of those [nentoring program decisions mght be
best left at the local |evel.

Nunmber 0480

CHAI R BUNDE said the state spends $4.7 nmillion per school day to
operate schools. He continued, "The state has, certainly, a
role in the funding, but local control is so incredibly
inportant to ... the basis of Al aska governnment. So it's ... an
interesting tightrope.™

CHAI R BUNDE concurred that nmentoring was one of the issues heard
about nost consistently during the interim hearings across the
state regarding teacher retention and recruitnent. Ment ori ng,
he surm sed, woul d  address shortage issues by giving
acconplished teachers new goals and opportunities and by

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 2- January 16, 2002



preventing new teachers from feeling as though they were "thrown
to the wolves."

Number 0600

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN i ndi cated that both the Lexington Institute
handout ["Indi spensable Tests: How a Val ue- Added Approach to
School Testing Could ldentify and Bol ster Exceptional Teaching"
by Robert Holland, Decenber 2001] and MIlken Fam |y Foundation
studies have found that the "biggest return on their buck"” is
quality teachers. He noted that quality teachers overshadow
ki ds' backgrounds, broken hones, pay - "anything."

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said, "There is a direct correlation

bet ween good teachers and good grades.” He noted this has been
wi tnessed in ghettos, cities, rural areas, and everywhere. He
stated that this research indicates nentoring is a critical
conponent for the first one to three years. He added that
nati onwi de, schools |ose half the teachers because, "they
claim" they were "thrown to the wolves, ... [or] in over their
head[ s] . " Some of that [attrition] is because teachers have

chosen the wong field, he indicated.
REPRESENTATI VE GREEN conti nued:

| think the new culture is that you' re going to change
job professions three or four tines in your lifetine.

So, even with those things, | think it's inperative
that we do establish sonething. And what | would
suggest is to maybe piggyback on what Representative
Stevens has said .... If that truly is one of the

| argest problens we have with retention of teachers
and nmaybe even securing teachers, "we have this
wonderful nmentoring program in Alaska, guys. Y al l
cone." Maybe that woul d hel p.

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN suggested a subcommttee should study
vari ous nentoring progranms and methods of funding them

Nunmber 0765

CHAI R BUNDE sought committee consensus to form a subconmttee
addressing nentoring prograns. He said he thought that
mentoring mght be something the commttee could address that
involves relatively small anounts of nobney with a large return
for the investnent.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 3- January 16, 2002



Nunmber 0825

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE wondered how broad or narrow [a view] the
commttee would be taking of a nentoring-type program He
menti oned both new teachers comng through "our university
systenl and teachers comng from outside the state to rural

Al aska. Was the commttee limting discussion to classroom
mentoring, or will it include an introduction to the [region and
culture]?

CHAIR BUNDE indicated that indeed, the definition of nentoring
and the job of a nentor would vary between Sand Lake El enentary
School in Anchorage and an elenmentary school in Kotzebue or
Noat ak, for exanple. He pointed out that there nay be two or
three new teachers in a school; would there then need to be
regi onal opportunities for nmentoring? He referenced an earlier
conversation wth the university community, EED, and the

Anchorage School District. He said his inpression was that the
university would like to provide nore substance for nentoring
[ prograns]. He thought that should be part of the discussion

and, perhaps, part of the fundi ng nechani sm
Nunber 0990

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN enphasized that the biggest issue was
maki ng new teachers feel at hone, showing them where the opera
is or how they can go after caribou, for exanple. He said the
nost success with nentoring has been where the community | eaders
get involved to help a new teacher, far from hone, to help her
feel "like she's one of us."

Number 1055

REPRESENTATI VE QGUESS added that principals need nentoring as
wel | . Oten new principals are isolated in their new positions
and need support and gui dance.

Number 1080

CHAI R BUNDE noted that the teacher shortage includes principals.
He appointed Representative Stevens as chair of the subcomittee

on nmentoring. He welconed any nenbers to attend and asked
Representatives Geen and CGuess to "provide the core" of the
comittee. He suggest ed menber s r ead t he materi al s
Representative Green had referenced. He noted that there wll

be an education roundtable in Juneau later this nonth; he hoped
all nenbers of the commttee woul d be invol ved.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -4- January 16, 2002



Number 1170

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON suggested approaching teachers to ask,
"What do you think would ve helped?” She added, "Perhaps
there's a class at the university level that the teachers could
take. ... Times are changing, and the teachers have to change
with the tines.” She noted that teachers "wear so nany nore
hat s nowadays." She wondered if the university needed to nake
sone changes in instruction as well.

Nunber 1224

CHAI R BUNDE recounted conversations in which the university had
expressed interest in looking at nentoring; it currently offers
no certificate or degree in that area. He encouraged conm ttee
menbers to be creative in their thinking but fiscally realistic.
"Where can we get the greatest return?" he asked.

Nunber 1264

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS suggested EED conpile information on what
districts are currently doing with nentoring.

Number 1290

CHAIR BUNDE confirmed with the nentoring subcommttee chair,
Representative Stevens, that the subconmttee would have a
report for the commttee in two weeks.

Nunber 1320

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS said health care had been an issue in the
interim hearings. She speculated this was an area that may have
a zero fiscal inpact. She said nost of Kotzebue's [state
funding] increase was allocated to increased health care costs.
She wondered if it was possible for districts to buy in to the
state's health care system at cost to enable them to be part of
a bi gger pool.

Nunber 1370
CHAIR BUNDE agreed this would be a |logical and cost-saving
nmeasur e. He requested that Representative Guess check with the

Division of Retirenment & Benefits to see what obstacles m ght be
in the way of [such an arrangenent].

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 5- January 16, 2002



Nunber 1392

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS expressed his concern that health care is
a negotiated issue with union contracts in each district. He
al so wondered if the state program was a package.

Nunber 1410

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN noted that he had heard recruitnment and
retention of teachers was an issue at the interim hearings.
Many experienced teachers are retiring after 20 years. He said
a couple of retired teachers in his district have been asked to
return to teaching. He noted the problem was they would have to
pay back the [retirenent] package they took before they could
return. He wondered if it would be to the state's advantage to
rehire retired teachers at the rate of a new teacher's salary.
He also wondered if these teachers would be "out-of-phase” with
new t eachi ng techni ques. He said the Anchorage School District
has | ooked into this, but has taken no action to date.

Nunmber 1508

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON added that she thought it nade a
di fference how teachers retired, whether it was through an early
retirement or a normal retirenent.

Nunmber 1533

CHAI R BUNDE noted that Beth Nordlund, Special Assistant, EED
had confirmed by a nod that this was indeed true.

Nunmber 1550

BETH NORDLUND, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Conm ssioner,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnent, stated that she
t hought each package differed.

Number 1560

CHAIR BUNDE suggested the commttee talk to the Division of
Retirement & Benefits regarding rehiring retired teachers to
determ ne what the fiscal inpact would be. He volunteered to
research and answer the question of recertification of retired
t eachers.

Nunmber 1605

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 6- January 16, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE GREEN noted that retired teachers starting over

at a new teacher's salary don't cost the state any nore. The
cost was incurred when the teacher retired, "but that's a done
deal ," he concl uded. Furthernore, it is already known whether

the fornmer teacher was a good teacher.
Nunmber 1660

CHAI R BUNDE noted that sone teachers need to change professions,
but that their success is also based on their supervision and
t eachi ng assi gnnents.

Nunmber 1686

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS noted that he wanted any system to be
fair. "Peopl e have got to sonehow take care of that advantage
they got [by] retiring early,” he said. He pointed out that
other states are benefiting by hiring Alaska's retired teachers.
Sonme of these teachers are wanted back by Al askan districts, but
are unable to return because of the retirenment rules.

Number 1720

CHAI R BUNDE requested EED to comment on recertification options
at the next conmittee neeting in tw weeks.

Nunmber 1738

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN added that he thought the committee could
suggest changes that would circunvent obstacles which prevent
nodi fying the current retirenment system

Number 1761

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON agreed with Representative CGuess's idea of
the insurance pool. She noted that the Wangell Schoo
District's building and Iliability insurance increased 130
percent this year alone. She continued, "That nmakes a huge
difference for school districts; that makes the difference
bet ween a teacher's pay."

Number 1790
CHAIR BUNDE confirmed that Representative Guess would broaden

her insurance inquiry to include other forms of insurance beyond
heal th care.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -7- January 16, 2002



Nunber 1814

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS added that sonme districts are pooling
with their |ocal governnent.

Nunber 1820

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE nentioned that the Al aska Association of
School Boards offers insurance through [Alaska Public Entity
I nsurance (APElI), fornmerly Alaska Schools Insurance Conpany
(ASIO)]. He said that the teacher housing shortage was another
issue heard at the interim conmttee hearings. He thought the
commttee should look at this as a subject related to
recruitnent and retention of teachers, especially for outlying
districts. He noted that rural districts have a hi gher turnover
rate than urban areas which is partially due to housing issues.

Nunmber 1888

CHAIR BUNDE inforned the conmttee it wll be hearing a bill
sponsored by Representative Rokeberg [HB 293-AHFC LOANS TO
TEACHERS] that will help teachers buy hones. Sonme areas of the
state, he noted, have no hones available to purchase, and that
needs to be addressed as well. He suggested discussing housing
when the conm ttee hears Representative Rokeberg's bill

Nunmber 1926

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN urged the commttee to cone up with ideas
[to sol ve educat i on probl ens] , and per haps i ntroduce
| egi sl ation, wthout worrying about the fiscal ramfications.
He recommended that the commttee nenbers let the finance
committee or this comrittee review that [later.] He enphasi zed
the inportance of these discussions and suggested there may be
creative ways to finance the solutions. On the other hand, sone
i deas just require noney.

Number 1990

CHAI R BUNDE rem nded the commttee that the Benchmark Tests and
High School Graduation Qualifying Exam (HSGQE) have taken 3
teaching days away from the school year; this has decreased
students' "tinme on task."” He noted that in other countries,
students spend nore time in school than American and Al askan
students. He remarked that the average attendance in Al aska had
increased from 140 days a year to 180 days a year since the

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 8- January 16, 2002



inception of the testing which provides teachers and students
nore opportunity to be productive.

CHAI R BUNDE sai d:

So | had this great notion .... We've taken three
days away for testing, let's just add 3 days to the
Al aska school year. In ny heart of hearts, | think we
should add 10, maybe 15 or 20. But 3, what a mnor
t hi ng!

Nunmber 2074

CHAIR BUNDE distributed "Estimated Cost of Additional School
Days," prepared by Eddy Jeans, School Finance WManager, EED.
According to the report, it costs $4.7 mllion a day to run
Al aska's schools. He noted that Anchorage al one costs the state
about $1 mllion a day. Chair Bunde expressed that, in spite of

the cost, he's unwilling to say, "This just can't be done."” The
| egi sl ature has, in the past, added substantial amounts to the
Foundati on Formul a. This would cost, he said, around $15
mllion to add 3 days.

CHAI R BUNDE expressed his desire for the commttee to tal k about
addi ng days and for it to become an issue on the public agenda.
He related his reservation, saying, "In the best of all worlds
we could add another $15 million to our Foundation Fornula -
woul d that be the best way to spend that noney? O are there
ot her ways that would be nore productive?"

Nunber 2166

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN questioned whether the projected cost per
day would be less, given that the salaries are already paid for.

Nunmber 2175

CHAIR BUNDE stated that Anchorage teachers' contracts cover a
188-day school year. There would be 3 days in addition to that.
He stated that these nunbers from Eddy Jeans took the total cost
for the school year and divided it by the nunber of days to
determine a daily rate. He noted that there nay be sone
creative ways to reduce that anount . He added that
transportation costs would be significant for districts that
transport students.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 9- January 16, 2002



CHAIR BUNDE said he'd hoped to encourage schools to use the
[ proposed] three additional days for testing. Students who were
not testing would have in-service days; teaching tine would be
saved. He continued:

One of the things I've heard - and it's a fair
criticism particularly at the high school [level] -

[is that] the students who are not being tested
aren't having quality education, because [teachers]
are just having to do crowd control

CHAIR BUNDE renmarked that "at first blush" it seens [adding 3

days] can't be done. Maybe we need to "find sone way around
this roadbl ock. " He would |ike feedback from school districts
and EED. Maybe school districts wll have nore productive ways
of spending the $15 nmillion than just extending the school year,
he not ed.

Number 2313

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON remarked that the benchmarks require
teachers to teach to the standards. Sone school districts she
has spoken with need nore noney for in-service training for
teachers. She said, "It's easy to say, 'Wll, you ve got these
days. ' But to fly sonmebody in to do the in-service teaching or
a specialist to conme in and do sonething, ... that costs a |ot
of noney for a school system to do. But it's very, very
necessary. " She noted that the standards require a change in

the teaching method and that many teachers have not had that
trai ni ng.

Nunber 2370

CHAI R BUNDE noted that he's been told that "in-service, at |east
at the elenentary, frequently |eaves sonething to be desired.”
In-services are not always the nost productive use of the
teachers' tinme, he noted. Perhaps the commttee would like to
address the subject of in-service. He continued, "How do we
tread that fine line between being helpful at the state |eve
and then being so prescriptive that we're taking away the |oca
control and causing nore problens than we're helping [to]
solve. "

Number 2401

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS questioned how many requirenents for in-
service are on the statutes. Are all of these necessary each

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -10- January 16, 2002



year ? VWhat burden is the legislature currently placing on
school districts? That issue cane out of the wuniversity
nmeet i ng. Her inpression from people in the schools was that
there are a |l ot of requirenents.

Nunber 2435

CHAIR BUNDE noted his inpression that it's done by local and
state regulation, and not nmuch 1is done legislatively to
prescribe in-service requirenents. He requested a report in two
weeks' tine on the status of state requirenents for in-service
training. He also asked Representative @uess to report on
additional requirenments in the Anchorage School District.

Nunber 2450

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS pointed out that the comrmittee had heard a
| ot about extending the school year and about the three days of
testing. She noted that the "Esti mted Cost of School Days" was
a linear analysis, but that nost things in life aren't |inear,
and it was a good starting place. The actual cost is unknown,
but the conmmttee nust neke a best estimate and then nake a
policy decision, she offered.

Nunmber 2486

CHAI R BUNDE stated that the commttee would be required to share
this with colleagues, who would request sone "pretty |Ilinear”
answers. He continued, "I'm sure there will be, in the House
al one, 40 ideas of how we mght better invest in our schools,
and how nmuch that ought to be, and where it ought to go."

TAPE 02-1
SI DE B
Nunber 2499

CHAI R BUNDE noted he was hopeful that price alone will not be
the only criterion in making this decision. He said he didn't
think Eddy Jeans would try to "price this high" to discourage
the coonmttee; if anything, he would try to encourage nenbers.

Number 2475
REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS referred to HB 293 and indicated the
commttee should |ook beyond the purchase of honmes to the

shortage of houses. He stated that the university has built
dormtories wth US. Depar t nent of Housing and Urban

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -11- January 16, 2002



Devel opment (HUD) funds. Could the |egislature pursue with HUD
the building of housing for districts? He said, "It's a great
payback. You know you're going to get your noney if you build a
house on Akhi ok and you've got one teacher down there."

Nunber 2442

CHAIR BUNDE enphasized that dormitories do not pay for
t hensel ves.

Nunmber 2436

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS noted that teacher housing will pay for
itself. It is difficult for districts to find the funding to
build new houses in snmall villages when, in fact, they are

needed. He recommended that the committee pursue the idea with
HUD.

Number 2425

CHAI R BUNDE concurred, saying, "Wen the bill's before us ... |
think it's an excellent idea. |If we're going to say, 'W'd |like
to provide a nmechanismto help individuals finance a hone.' Wy

not a district finance a honme?"
Nunber 2416
REPRESENTATI VE JOULE recalled that two years ago the Legislative

Budget and Audit Conmttee explored the idea of regional high
schools. He suggested the conmttee should revisit the regiona

hi gh school concept. He continued, "Attached to that, maybe
sonmething that isn't the regional high school, but a stepping
stone, or md-point, and that would be ... regional |earning
centers. And the possibility of extending past the twelfth
grade, i.e., grade fourteen." He said he thought this would be
"a time well spent.” He noted that not all rural parts of the
state would enbrace this concept, but proposed that the

committee should entertain the idea for those areas that are
i nt erest ed.

Nunber 2345

CHAIR BUNDE comrented that many conmttee nenbers know very
successf ul Native and rural residents who have gained
"significant advantage from their experience of going to a
regi onal school.” One of the problens with this idea, he noted,
was the need to have |ocal schools. He noted that this idea

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -12- January 16, 2002



woul d generate sone interesting discussion. Chair Bunde said
that he has seen the value of people being able to attend a
[ regional] school.

Nunmber 2296
REPRESENTATI VE JOULE offered that he thought sufficient time had
passed, and that people in sone parts of the state were wlling

to entertain the discussion. He continued:

If we look at why we want to educate people in the

first place, ... it's to help our younger generation
nove into areas of econom c opportunities. And by
getting into regional hub areas, | think we'd better
have the opportunity to showase the opportunities
that may not exist in the smaller villages. How can
you live in a small village and still work in a hub
center? Maybe on a rotating work schedule in a

prof ession, whether it's in medicine, aviation, or
anyt hi ng el se. And | think it has the added benefit
of creating an environnent where the expectations are
such that they would not be a huge surprise by the
time one got onto a <college <canpus or to a
[ vocational -techni cal school], wherever they chose to
go as a postsecondary experience.

Number 2229

CHAI R BUNDE paraphrased Representative Mses and said that the
lives of young people in rural Alaska wuld be greatly
facilitated if they would get a business degree and a nodem
they could teleconmute anywhere in the world. Chair Bunde
observed that this is an option becom ng nore avail able. Sone
woul d physically commute froma small community to a hub, while
others may live in a small community and run their own schedul es
via e-nmail . He explained that he nmaintains an office in Juneau
year-round, and he tel ecommutes every day [during the interim.

Nunmber 2146

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she thought Representative Joule had
a very good suggestion. She noted that college and "big city"
life can be very traumatic for students. It is also very hard

on the famly back honme; they are used to a tight, cohesive
famly. She said she has known parents to call their children
and beg them to cone back. A regional center would allow a
student to go for short periods and enable the famly to get

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -13- January 16, 2002



used to his/her absence. She noted that sonetines the famly
doesn't encourage the child to stay [in college] because
"they're just dying inside thenselves." This would help both
the student and the famly to get wused to the idea of
separation

Nunber 2073

CHAIR BUNDE observed that he thought the tenor of the
relationship [anbng commttee nenbers] was one of cooperation.
He specul ated this m ght be because "the problens are big enough
that our individual differences aren't that inportant.”

Number 2009

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS nentioned that [HB 171- ALASKA HI STORY
CURRI CULUM is now in the House Finance Commttee. He indicated
that the Anchorage School District has included Al askan history
in its curriculum He said he would like to see nenbers
encourage the House Finance Committee to nove HB 171 out of
committee.

Nunmber 1965

CHAI R BUNDE commented that he thought that the discussion needed
to continue regarding how "heavy-handed" the state wants to be
in being prescriptive. It would be interesting, he said, to
find out how many districts do not [require] Al askan history.

CHAI R BUNDE noted his concern regarding the "general disconnect”
that young people have from society. He said, "There may be
nore of ... '"What can society do for nme?" and 'Wiy should you
ever ask ne to do anything? out there than is healthy." He
reported that sone school districts have added a service
conponent to graduation requirenents. He re-enphasized, "How
much should the state require, and how nmuch shoul d be | ocal ?"

CHAI R BUNDE said he thought that the topic of "service |earning”
shoul d be discussed by the conmttee. He noted that while he
wasn't prepared to wite legislation making [service |learning] a
state requirenent, he thought it a topic worthy of discussion.

It gives young people an opportunity to "buy in." He said,
"You're less likely to 'trash' sonmething when you' ve helped
create it." Service learning gives students a pattern for |ife-

| ong behavior and gets them nore involved in conmunities and in
gover nment .

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -14- January 16, 2002



CHAI R BUNDE sai d:

Qoviously, | am guilty of criticizing a society that
expects our schools to do everything and becone
surrogate parents .... And so | tread cautiously

here, though I would be interested in getting feedback
both from our schools and from the conmttee as to
your view of what service learning mght ... entail,
and whether that's even soneplace we should think
about goi ng.

Nunmber 1838

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN said he thought Chair Bunde was "right on
target." He thought it inperative to "get across" to young
peopl e a sense of responsibility. He expressed his opinion that
a "giveaway" state takes away a sense of responsibility when it
"picks up the tab" for everything. If people have a buy-in,
they're going to take nore sense of responsibility, and they're
going to do a lot of good things for society.

Number 1800

CHAIR BUNDE remarked on a program he saw about inner city
Phi | adel phi a. In this program college students nentored high
school students who nentored elenentary students. He noted, "If
you didn't show up for school, there were sone fol ks wondering
about you. And if you had a problem at school, there was
soneone ... wanting to do sonething to help.” He continued,
"It's, again, ... that old adage, that 'locks just keep the
honest people out.’ C If there's sonme light shone on
sonething - that we feel |ike what we do matters to soneone -

maybe there are sone second thoughts before we do a rash thing."
Number 1750

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE referred to a conversation with a Juneau
teacher regarding the issue of attendance. Some of the |arger
comunities may have truant officers, he noted, but the smaller
communities do not have them Juneau does not have a truant
of ficer. He said he was unsure about the need for a "policy"
driven by the state; he thought it warranted dialogue wth
school districts and conmunities to see how Al aska can keep its
students in the classroom

REPRESENTATI VE JOULE described his experience since the advent
of the HSGQE, saying, "The nunber of students that graduate from

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -15- January 16, 2002



the eighth grade versus those nunbers that nake it though high
school; there's a huge variation.” He wondered if that was a
di scussion the commttee should be having.

Number 1681

CHAIR BUNDE indicated that extending the school year would do
little for kids who aren't attending now. He nentioned a
community that decided that "this was unacceptable and they
tightened up their attendance."” He continued, "Wat's the state
role, and how can we help? ... It's another question | don't
have an answer to, but one that is worth di scussing.”

Number 1660

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she thought that the student gained a
|l ot of insight and direction for his/her |ife by doing community
[ service]. She reported that Wangell has seen big benefits
from students involved in community service; it is a graduation
requi renent, and athletes in any sport nust serve a mninmm

nunber of community hours. She said she has seen students
assist elderly patients, work wth Head Start children, or
provide a new service to the conmunity. The school board,

teachers, and parents have worked together to nmke these
deci sions, and they believe it has made a difference, she noted.

Number 1597

CHAI R BUNDE requested that Representative WIson inquire about
and report on Wangell's service-learning program and how it
evol ved. He al so wondered what the Wangell School District's
reaction to state involvenent would be. He reiterated that
schools have so nuch to do; a service |earning conponent would
add "anot her thing" before a high school student could go on to

college or get a decent job. |Is the tine avail abl e?

Nunber 1510

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN referred to a hand-drawn graph show ng
crime rates and tinme of day. The highest crinme rate anong
juveniles is from 3 p.m to 5 p.m The rate is tw to four
times as high during those two hours after school. He wonder ed

if it is possible to start the school day two hours later to
avoid tired students in the norning and reduce crinme in the
af t er noon. He noted that he has never heard a satisfactory
answer as to why that [later starting tinme] couldn't work.

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -16- January 16, 2002



Nunber 1432

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS commented that she's been told that in the
Anchorage  School District it's a transportation I ssue.
El ementary students are up early, and there is a problem with
appropriate daycare until they go to school at 9 a.m She said
the children at Muntain View Elenentary were at school before
it opened when the unfortunate slashing occurred |ast year. She
indicated that she'd not received a satisfactory answer from
[the Anchorage School District] on switching the staggered
starting times.

REPRESENTATI VE GUESS conti nued, "Why don't we have the
el enentary school kids go early - they're up .... The high
school kids go later; you wouldn't have extra transportation
i ssues. " She suggested the conmttee could ask the Anchorage
School District superintendent. She concluded by saying,
"Teenagers won't get up early to get in trouble.”

Nunber 1367

CHAI R BUNDE added that nany students' senior year is not "tine-
intensive in the classroom"™ Many have net their graduation
requirenents, they're working half tinme, and they're com ng or
going and taking only one or two classes. This is the trouble
with the notion of closed canpuses, he stated. He queried, "How
do we not unfairly burden those students who are working their
fannies off in their senior year and encourage those that aren't
spending a lot of tinme in school in their senior year to spend
nore tinme [in school]?"

Number 1300

REPRESENTATI VE  STEVENS expressed his need for a better
understanding of how Al aska's school districts were devel oped

He said he would Iike to hear from EED and to explore the issue
of consolidation of districts.

Nunber 1247
CHAIR BUNDE noted that single-site school districts have
"provoked a good deal of interesting conversation in ny career

in the legislature.”

Nunber 1240

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -17- January 16, 2002



M5. NORDLUND responded that she would research the history of
school district fornmation for the committee.

Nunber 1218

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON referred to Representati ve Green's
sketched graph of juvenile crinme and noted that research shows
that the mmjority of pregnant teenagers get pregnant during
those sane hours of 3 pm to 5 p.m She noted that sone
schools in her district [House District 2] do schedule the high
school starting tinme later than the primary and el enentary. She
offered to check to see if these schools have noted a difference
wi th this change.

Nunber 1132

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN asked about the purpose of the "significant
anount of information" given to conmttee nenbers.

Nunber 1122

CHAIR BUNDE replied that the information was for the conmttee
menbers' continui ng educati on.

Number 1112

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON referred to "Statistics Left Qut of
Tol erance Comm ssion's Take on Rural, Urban School Funding” by

Dermot Cole [in the commttee packet]. She said that according
to the article, Senator Wlken is preparing a detailed report on
funding sources in education. She said she would like the

commttee to get that report.
Number 1080

CHAI R BUNDE responded that he would talk with Senator W] ken at
their upcom ng appointnment, and he would get the conmttee nore
i nformation. He reminded the comrmittee that it had requested a
new cost differential study. That information wll not be
avai lable wuntil next vyear. He added that should the House
Special Conmittee on Education continue to exist next session,
menbers shoul d spend sone tine discussing that study.

Number 1003

REPRESENTATI VE STEVENS comment ed:

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE - 18- January 16, 2002



This has been a really valuable experience for ne -
this conmttee - and it has served a trenendous
pur pose. And | can't imagine if it were folded into
[the House Health, Education and Social Services
Standing Commttee (HHES)], how we would cover all of
the issues that we have covered this past year. So,
don't know where we go from here, but wth vyour
| eadership, | would hope that we would let our
| eadership know the inportance of this committee. I
woul d hope to see this becone a standing committee,
or, if not, continue as a subcommittee.

Number 0956

CHAI R BUNDE agreed that he would like the commttee to cone up
with a recormmendation or a resolution if the nenbers agree that
the commttee ought to remain separate from HHES, as in nany
other states. Having chaired both commttees, he stated that he
sees the value of keeping them separate. He noted that
according to Chair Dyson, the HHES plate is full. The Senate
doesn't have enough people to create another standing commttee.
He noted that Representative @Quess has shared with him a
proposal "to that effect,” and told the conmttee he would bring
that to the next neeting.

Nunber 0874

REPRESENTATI VE GREEN added that the state spends over $700
mllion per year on education and that he thought it worthy of
"undi vi ded attention."

Number 0850

CHAI R BUNDE noted that education is the largest single item of
the state's budget, and that the second largest single itemis
corrections. He added that he thought the norning had been very
successful and productive.

Nunmber 0832

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Special Committee on Education neeting was adjourned at 9:33
a. m

HOUSE EDU COW TTEE -19- January 16, 2002



